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| write to raise serious concerns I@ngd\\)xh;ﬁhat | perceive as some quite clear investigator
interference in the criminal j E\& Q&s in the matter of R v Lehrmann SCC 264 of 2021. |
had intended to address tlé%t@gz@anclusion of the trial, however the trial’s recent
vacation and the seﬁizeﬁf,q&%q&rial date commencing 20 February 2023 demands that |
address it now to proteeﬁg@xtegrity of the pending trial.

| will first outline some historic context in this matter.

Investigation stage

My engagement in the matter of R v Lehrmann began on 31 March 2021, with what was
first touted as a briefing in relation to a sensitive matter. | attended at Belconnen Police
Station and met with S 47F(1) and most other members of the
SACAT team. My immediate perception of this meeting was that it was not a briefing at all,
rather a clear and overt attempt to use loaded characterisations of some very select
evidence in an attempt to persuade me to agree with a position police had clearly adopted,
specifically that the allegations should not proceed to charge. During the meeting |
corrected a number of misconceptions about the importance or otherwise of a number of
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pieces of evidence for police to take on board as part of what | understood was a continuing
investigation.

Then on 12 April 2021, at the request of s47F(1) , | met with
him in the conference room of the DPP offices. This meeting was again along a similar vein
to the meeting of 31 March 2021, leaving me with the very clear impression that s 47F(1)
was not seeking my views, rather was very clearly attempting to secure my agreement to a
position he had clearly adopted that the matter should not proceed to charge.

On 1 June 2021, there was a third meeting at the DPP, this time with both s 47F(1) and s47F(1)
s 47F(1) in similar vein to the previous two meetings, this time with some further cherry-
picked elements of potential evidence advanced as constituting weaknesses in the case. This
meeting concluded with me reminding the officers that there are provisions for them to

seek a formal advice under the AFP/DPP collaborative agreement, however | would require

the actual brief of evidence rather than selected characterisationéand sg\@maries of

evidence. é(, O
<&
| have since become aware from s 47F(1) diary notes@z mee\tfhg between s 47F(1)

and S 477D held ore?/ Jun V2%21, in which s47F(1)
advanced a view to s47F(1)  that there was ”ins@ﬁci @dence to proceed. DCPO
V' AV
advised he had a meeting with DPP who statedﬁwej@g '@Ebnduct Prosecution...DCPO stated
\Y% g
if it was my choice | wouldn’t proceed, but l{/k'r@?“ hoice, there is too much political
interference.” The notes further record 4‘9 O<<'\stating “I said, that’s inappropriate given |

think there is insufficient evidence.”, \%?“% O@
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Notwithstanding their clearly @Srg%eé«((fews that the matter should not proceed to
charge, on 21 June 2021, ° %9 served a brief of evidence on myself, attached to a letter
purporting to request Qgﬁig\e}(‘ﬁ@ﬁever really outlining further mischaracterisations and
other inaccurate select sg\ﬂn@ ies of evidence that were clearly advanced as a list of
reasons why | should agree\}ﬂith a position clearly already being taken by s47F(1)  and
shared by s 47F(1) that the matter should not proceed to charge. This document
contained blatant misrepresentations of evidence such as suggestions that key evidence
was deliberately deleted by the complainant, a proposition not supported by the tested
evidence at trial, as well as a list of evidence that is clearly inadmissible in trial. The letter
concludes with a further overt attempt to apply pressure to the conclusion of my resulting
advice:

Ms Higgins creditability (sic) is the cornerstone of the prosecution case and given the above
articulated issues and that there is limited corroborative evidence of sexual intercourse
taking place or consent being withdrawn or not provided, investigators have serious
concerns in relation to the strength and reliability of her evidence, but also more importantly
her mental health and how any further prosecution may affect her wellbeing.
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On 28 June 2021, | provided a minute to **/F(1) advising that | was of the view that there
were reasonable prospects of conviction, and the matter should proceed to charge.

It transpired that on the day the summons was sworn, being 6 August 2021, s 47F(1)

directed that a full brief of evidence be served directly on the first defence team rather than
through the DPP, which was extremely unfortunate as it unlawfully included both protected
counselling notes and evidence in chief interview videos.

It further transpired that Mr Lehrmann’s summons was at first mention on 16 September
2021 and the matter was committed for a trial that eventually commenced on 4 October
2022, with the jury being discharged due to misconduct by one juror on 27 October 2022.

Collateral to this, the complainant has long expressed concerns that during the investigation
stage, she also felt bullied by police who she felt were pressuring her into discontinuing the
complaint. This is an observation corroborated by at least two of her suppod\people.
Although this is a matter for her to raise directly with the AFP, igg,Qeleva@% or our purposes
as it impacted the trial process, as she presented as highly am@B’us in @;Ting with either the
police or by extension, the DPP. This resulted in her reququ?\/g all,eﬁ%agement be
conducted through the Victims of Crime Commissionqﬁ%(/ins@ite her from direct contact
and further pressure by police either directly or vi oél%xtj@ough the DPP. Then on 22
September 2021, investigators purported to rr@é{/ﬁé im of Crime Commissioner a

witness by conducting a record of interviev&,)\ij &%&(%ey asked her two highly unusual
lines of questions. The first was how she@Qe’ Q& <ir\\volved with the complainant, and the
second was her recollection of a co )@fs&ffb@%tween the complainant, s47F(1) and

s 47F(1) that she was present @s Qﬁ‘%&ber 2021, | received a letter from yourself,
stating that because she was %\@/if&ss, the AFP could no longer communicate through
her. This was a highly unugy@l Q;X“p&the complainant was also a witness, yet police still had
extensive contact with'h\gi\u ?@e requested all contact be made through the Victim of
Crime Commissioner. \)é

Concerns relating to trial process

During the conduct of the trial, a number of disturbing events have occurred, including
prosecution witness s47F(1) firstly giving evidence directly contradictory to
her Chief of Staff, then directly soliciting transcripts of other evidence to tailor her evidence
direct from the defence Barrister Steven Whybrow. She further engaged in direct coaching
of the defence cross-examination of the complainant by directing them to evidence she
should not have access to. This was all done through direct contact with defence barrister
Steven Whybrow. 471 further organised for her partner to attend the court for
the entire trial, with him regularly seen conferencing with the defence team during the
course of the entire trial.
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The conduct of investigators has been equally as concerning. s47F(1) and a
number of other current and former SACAT members have been attending key parts of the
latter stages of the trial, and | have noted they have also been regularly conferencing with
the defence team during the breaks. The defence team have further been directing further
investigations directly through investigators, in one case relating to the evidence of a
member of SACAT, s 22(1)@)i) after her evidence was concluded. We
discovered this when we received an unsolicited email from s22(1)@)i) on 13 October 2022
outlining some additional points to her evidence. This was followed by an email from

S47F(1) dated 14 October 2022 at 2.54pm stating
“I have also attached the email s 2(§éntyesterday regarding the Phillip Medical Centre
enquiries. The bosses just want to confirm it has been seen and passed onto defence.”
Then 16 minutes later at 3.10pm s 47F(1) attempted to recall this email and replace it
with another one stating “/ have attached the email 5 **Sé@¥Yesterday regarding Phillip
Medical Centre. I'm just checking that it was received and passed onto defgqce”. It appears
that he wanted to replace “The bosses just want to confirm” with”I’'m &b@checking".

% 5o
Finally, on the discharge of the jury on 27 October 2022, dg}a’nce J{éﬁister Steven Whybrow

spoke to my junior s 47F(1) and stated that he had@’mee il\r%’with the investigators,

and that they had suggested that he contact me a@iﬁ%&s@gest | was not impartial, and

consequently request that | should outsource tb}f< eg@

the trial to someone outside of the office. 8’ ng ng discussion with defence regarding
the potential application for a bail cond@s‘m@@a&ﬁe accused surrender his passport, Mr

Whybrow stated on the transcript ”me\cﬂggéégb en with the Australian Federal Police. They
have no concerns at all about Mr Kehr: néJ)eing a flight risk.” This is emblematic of the

constant exclusive direct eng@v@\ ice have had with the defence rather than the

prosecution in the lead u%ﬁo%dﬁ@%’the trial.

TR Q- _ .
Later that day | phoned V@érow and sought clarification on his comment relating to his
request to outsource the dééision of whether to re-run the trial. Firstly, he acknowledged

'QX\?ES to whether or not to re-run

the comment was made, but then stated that his “ongoing discussions with investigators”
were none of the prosecutions business.

From first engagement it has been clear that from $47/F(1) down, key AFP members
have had a strong desire for this matter not to proceed to charge. Then when charges
resulted, the investigator’s interests have clearly aligned with the successful defence of this
matter rather than its prosecution, the motive for both of which remains concerning. As a
corollary however, there has now been over one and a half years of consistent and
inappropriate interference by investigators, firstly directed towards my independence with
a very clear campaign to pressure me to agree with the investigators desire not to charge,
then during the conduct of this trial itself, and finally attempting to influence any decision
on aretrial.
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| am of the view that at the conclusion of the trial, there should be a public enquiry into
both political and police conduct in this matter, however it appears clear that this is
continuing to be a significant factor during the ongoing conduct of this trial.

| accordingly request that a direction be issued to all police to remove themselves from any
engagement in this matter beyond being called as a witness for the prosecution. This
includes no further contact with defence or other prosecution witnesses, no contact with
the complainant, and prohibiting attendance at court beyond formal evidence if required.

| further seek your support for an enquiry to be conducted at the conclusion of the trial
process into the conduct of police investigators in the lead up to charge and beyond, during
the trial process itself.

Yours faithfully,
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